
 

 

Notice & Agenda 
 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 
 

Tuesday, January 15, 2019 

9:00 AM 

LEC Meeting Room – 301 14th St N, Benson, MN 

 

If you need any type of accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the County Administrator at 

320-314-8399 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Times are only estimates and items may be taken out of order. 
 

        Time     Reference                                      Item                                             
 

 9:00 a.m.  Call to Order and Roll Call  
 

   9:01 a.m.                     Approve Agenda 

  9:03 a.m.  Consent Agenda  

  1-3  (1) Minutes from the January 8, 2019 Regular Meeting 

  4  (2) Minutes from the January 8, 2019 Executive Meeting 

  5-8  (3) Consider approving Swift County Agriculture Inspector 

Annual Report and Work-plan Summary for 2018  
   

 9:04 a.m.  Consider Approval of Commissioner warrants and review Auditor 

warrants reviewed 
 9:05 a.m.                  Commissioner and Board reports  

 9:20 a.m.  County Administrator report 

 9:25 a.m.  Citizens Comments 

 9:30 a.m.  Catie Lee, Human Services 

  9-20  Consider approving Human Services Annual Contract and 

Agreement 

  21  Consider approving Agreement for city owned building for Swift 

County Drop-In-Center 

  22-24  Monthly Update 

 9:45 a.m.  Other Business 

    Building Discussion 

     

 10:30 a.m.          Adjournment 



 

 

SWIFT COUNTY BOARD MINUTES 

January 8, 2019 
  
County Auditor Kim Saterbak called the organizational meeting to order at 9:00 AM with all 

Commissioners present as well as Administrator Kelsey Baker, County Attorney Danielle Olson, and Terri 

Orr. 

 

Auditor Saterbak asked for nominations for Chair of the Board.   

 

01-08-19-01 Commissioner Hendrickx nominated Commissioner E. Pederson. Commissioner E. Pederson 

nominated Commissioner Rudningen. After calling for additional nominations three times, Saterbak 

declared nominations closed and a hand vote was taken. Commissioners Fox, Hendrickx, and P. Peterson 

voted for Commissioner E. Pederson. Commissioner E. Pederson voted for Commissioner Rudningen. 

Commissioner E. Pederson was named Board Chair for 2019. (Resolution No. 19-01-01) 

 

Auditor Saterbak asked for nominations for Vice Chair of the Board.   

 

01-08-19-02 Commissioner Fox nominated Commissioner Hendrickx for Vice Chair. Commissioner 

Rudningen moved nomination cease and a unanimous ballot be cast. Saterbak declared nominations closed 

and named Commissioner Hendrickx as Vice Chair for 2019. (Resolution No. 19-01-02) 

   

Auditor Saterbak turned the meeting over to Chairman E. Pederson. 

 

Chairman E. Pederson asked if there were any changes to the agenda. There were none. 

 

01-08-19-03 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve the agenda as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

01-08-19-04 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to approve the 

Consent Agenda which consisted of: (1) Approval of Minutes from December 28, 2018 Regular Meeting, 

(2) Approval of the Limited Use Permit and Resolution No. 19-01-03 requested. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

01-08-19-05 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the 

Commissioner warrants as follows: Revenue: $241,449.21; Solid Waste: $18,887.33; County Road & 

Bridge: $9,645.57; Human Services: $974.67; Debt Service: $7,577.89; which includes the following bills 

over $2,000: 6W Department of Community Corrections, $143,329.50; Benson Municipal Utilities, 

$10,584.62; Center Point Energy, $2,325.28; Countryside Public Health, $57,272.00; Federated Telephone, 

$7,621.45; Geyer Recycling, $6,099.33; Johnson Feed Inc., $2,349.60; Life Insurance Co. of North. 

America, $2,155.40; MN Counties Computer Cooperative, MI, $6,600.00; MN County Attorneys 

Association, $2,612.00; Onsolve LLC, $9,858.80; Southwest Minnesota Workforce Council, $2,815.00; 

Waste Management of Northern Minnesota, $9,160.93; Dawn Weber, $2,425.00. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

Board and Committee Reports were given as follows: Commissioner P. Peterson reported on 6W 

Corrections. Commissioner Hendrickx reported on 6W Corrections and AMC. Commissioner Rudningen 

reported on Kerkhoven EDA meeting and welcoming Becca Turnquist for the full time Extension Program 

Coordinator position. Commissioner Fox reported on Chippewa River Watershed. Chair E. Pederson had 

nothing to report. 

 

Administrator Baker reported on the Out of Home Replacement meeting and building discussion with staff. 

1



 

 

 

Chairman E. Pederson asked for citizen’s comments. There were none. 

 

01-08-19-06 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-04 Adopting 2019 Board Committee Representatives, Advisory Committee 

Representatives, and Joint Ditch Board Representatives as on file in the County Auditor’s Office. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-07 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-05 to appoint Dr. A. Quinn Strobl as the County Medical Examiner for 2019 and may 

be supported by the Anoka County staff in the Anoka County Medical Examiner’s Office. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

01-08-19-08 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve Resolution No. 

19-01-06 setting the 2019 County Board meetings as follows: 1st Tuesday of the month at 9:00 AM and 3rd 

Tuesday of the month at 9:00 AM, with these exceptions: June 18, 2019 9:00 AM meeting will be moved to 

5:00 PM for the Board of Equalization; and the December 3, 2018 9:00 AM meeting will be moved to 

November 28, 2019 at 6:00 PM for the TNT Hearing. The Swift County Board of Commissioner’s meetings 

will be held at 301 14th St N in Benson, Minnesota. The board will also hold the following special meeting: 

December 27, 2019 at 9:00 AM for the end of the year. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-09 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve Resolution No. 

19-01-07setting the 2019 mileage reimbursement rate at the IRS rate of 58 cents per mile. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-10 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-08 adopting the Swift County Monitor News as the County’s official newspaper for 

2019 with the Appleton Press as the secondary paper. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

01-08-19-11 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-09 for the County Treasurer, Sheriff, Attorney, and Commissioners as the Elected 

Officials designated to attend the annual conferences for their offices. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-12 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve the 

Resolution No. 19-01-10 for the 2019 bounties as follows:  pocket gopher bounty paid to the township as 

$3.00 per gopher when the township pays a minimum of $5.00 per gopher or $2.00 per gopher when the 

township pays less than $5.00 per gopher and the 2019 beaver bounty of $100 for beaver in season and $100 

for beaver out of season in designated ditches only with the approval of the Parks and Drainage Supervisor 

and/or County Engineer. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-13 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve Resolution No. 

19-01-11 allocating the cost of the County Attorney’s services for Human Services to the Welfare Fund. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

01-08-19-14 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-12 setting the corporate signatures for 2019. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-15 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve resolution No. 

19-01-13 for the designation of corporate depositories for 2019. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-16 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-14 on the definition of employee for purposes of Workers Compensation. Motion 

2



 

 

carried unanimously.  

 

01-08-19-17 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-15 setting 2019 wages of elected officials. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-18 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-16 for the County Engineer 2019 cost of living increase of 1.0%. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

01-08-19-19 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-17 for the 2019 AMC policy committee assignments and delegate appointments. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

The regular session recessed to closed session at 9:40 AM. 

 

01-08-19-20 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to move to closed 

session to evaluate the performance of an individual who is subject to its authority pursuant to Minnesota 

Statutes, Section 13D.05, subdivision 3 for a scheduled annual performance review of County 

Administrator Kelsey Baker.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

12-29-17-21 Commissioner Rudningen moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to reconvened to regular 

session at 10:18 AM. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

It was noted by the Chair that Administrator Baker had a favorable 2018 performance review in the closed 

session.     

 

12-29-17-22 Commissioner Fox moved a resolution and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to approve 

Resolution No. 19-01-18 increasing the Administrator’s salary by 2.0% on January 1, 2019, in line with the 

non-union group, and moving the Administrator 1 step on her anniversary date of March 21, 2019 as 

specified in the resolution. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

12-29-17-23 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Rudningen seconded to adjourn. Motion 

carried unanimously.  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:21 AM.  

 

WITNESSED:  

 

       _____________________________ 

       Ed Pederson, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

 

 

3



SWIFT COUNTY BOARD MINUTES 

Record of Executive Session 

January 08, 2019 
  
Date convened:  Tuesday, January 08, 2019 

 

Time Convened: 9:40 AM 

 

Time adjourned: 10:17 AM 

 

Members Present: Commissioners Fox, Hendrickx, E. Pederson, P. Peterson, and Rudningen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Also Present:  County Administrator Kelsey Baker  

   County Attorney Danielle Olson 

 

Purpose: To evaluate the performance of an individual who is subject to its authority pursuant to 

Minnesota Statue 13D.03, Subd 3 for a scheduled annual performance review of County 

Administration Kelsey Baker. 

 

Chairman Pederson called the executive session to order at 9:40 AM with all members present as well as County 

Administrator Kelsey Baker. The Board reviewed the Commissioners’ evaluation forms and gave verbal 

feedback to Ms. Baker on her performance to date.  The review was favorable.   

 

Chairman E. Pederson adjourned the Executive Session at 10:17 AM  

  

WITNESSED:  

 

       _____________________________ 

       Ed Pederson, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator  

4



5



6



7



8



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
January 15, 2019 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services Catie Lee 320-843-6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Consider approving Annual Human Services Contract and Agreement 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Regular board Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Most are County Board action needs to be taken to review 
and approve the Contract and Agreement 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Contracted Agent Services 
Contracted 

Date of contract  Changes from previous 
contract 

Guardian Care & 
Consulting 

Guardianship 
Services 

1/1/19-12/31/19 No change 

Letter of agreement 
between 
United Cerebral Palsy 
and Swift County Human 
Services 
For Home and 
Community Based 
Services, Elderly Waiver 
and Alternative Care 
Services 
 

Pass through 
services for Chore 
services 

1/1/19-12/31/19 New agreement budgeted 
for. 

The contracts are located in the drop box for your review 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: Annual Budget 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text.  
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a Click here to enter text. 
 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
January 15, 2019 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services Catie Lee 320-843-6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Consider approving lease agreement for city owned building for Swift County Drop-In Center 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Regular board Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

 County Board action needs to be taken to review 
and approve the Lease Agreement 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Swift County Mental Health Council, under the county, would like to open a drop-in center located in 
the building that has been the senior citizens center. The city is willing to lease the building to Swift 
County for $1 for the year. Swift County will be responsible for light maintenance, cleaning and 
utilities.  

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: Annual Budget 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text.  
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a Click here to enter text. 
 

21



Out of Home Placement Report 1/2012-12/2018 

 

Swift County has spent 115.03% of 2018 budget on out-of-home Placements for 

the year 

 

2018 continues to show the highest number of placements since 2012, however 

2015 remains the year of the highest costs. 

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Placement Costs 2015-2018(current month)

2015 2016 2017 2018

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Total Placements/MO/YR

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

22



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTS

MONTH ENDING DECEMBER 31
2018

HUMAN SERVICES
Receipts  
Beginning Balance $3,278,551.67
Current Month Receipts  $220,149.65
Tax Settlement  $0.00
Investments  $685,000.00
Interest on Investments $5,213.36

 

Total Receipts $4,188,914.68

Disbursements
Current Month Disbursements $685,000.00
Investments $426,422.20

Total Disbursements $1,111,422.20

Ending Fund Balance $3,077,492.48

ENDING FUND BALANCE SUMMARY:
2017 2018

Checking Balance $46,239.53 $894,492.48
Investments $2,250,000.00 $2,183,000.00

  
Ending Cash Balance $2,296,239.53 $3,077,492.48

INVESTMENT REPORT

BANK TYPE OF ACCOUNT MAT. DATE INT. RATE AMOUNT
CO-OP Credit Union Money Market Account  0.90% 248,000.00$    
MAGIC Fund 1 Yr CD 01/18/19 2.00% 50,000.00$      
Level One Bank 6 Month CD 02/04/19 2.00% 200,000.00$    
DMB Community Bank 9 Month CD 04/30/19 2.05% 200,000.00$    
Washington TR CO 9 Month CD 05/29/19 2.15% 200,000.00$    
Quontic Bank 18 Month CD 06/28/19 1.85% 200,000.00$    
Customers Bank 11 Month CD 07/24/19 2.25% 200,000.00$    
Academy Bank 1 Year CD 08/08/19 2.30% 200,000.00$    
East-West Bank 2 Month CD 02/28/19 2.30% 200,000.00$    
Mizrahi Tefahot Bank 6 Month CD 06/27/19 2.45% 245,000.00$    
Bank of China 1 Year CD 12/27/19 2.75% 240,000.00$    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 2,183,000.00$ 

23



Swift County Human Services
Ending Monthly Cash & Investment Balances

2009 - 2018

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Average
Jan 1,039,335$     1,116,112$        1,027,808$     977,091$        909,780$         846,281$        983,278$       933,563$       1,668,733$         2,045,847$         $1,154,783
Feb 951,620$        1,069,918$        1,004,522$     829,326$        788,543$         739,793$        882,373$       886,577$       1,562,756$         1,967,692$         $1,068,312
Mar 772,024$        810,381$           848,432$        551,477$        576,608$         601,437$        593,206$       636,635$       1,278,985$         1,706,416$         $837,560
Apr 658,915$        732,868$           820,387$        328,272$        451,920$         446,379$        168,803$       352,306$       1,085,797$         1,415,224$         $646,087
May 474,455$        576,849$           669,878$        329,407$        300,099$         269,118$        187,841$       289,965$       804,645$            1,279,329$         $518,159
Jun 1,247,245$     1,244,642$        1,460,435$     1,218,863$     1,145,907$      1,361,018$     1,187,485$    1,476,200$    2,165,333$         2,745,303$         $1,525,243
Jul 1,188,516$     1,349,636$        1,142,375$     1,113,725$     1,094,712$      1,165,952$     1,217,022$    1,483,669$    2,160,790$         2,842,236$         $1,475,863
Aug 1,179,585$     1,237,374$        1,228,978$     894,462$        982,736$         1,199,826$     1,126,524$    1,532,984$    1,995,009$         2,661,662$         $1,403,914
Sep 948,233$        1,085,187$        1,079,263$     804,086$        714,174$         921,407$        877,167$       1,220,833$    1,650,293$         2,409,864$         $1,171,051
Oct 832,082$        878,408$           773,615$        538,645$        627,339$         667,331$        646,265$       1,028,981$    1,459,114$         2,139,152$         $959,093
Nov 770,517$        826,623$           741,489$        483,013$        377,803$         477,198$        513,740$       2,056,684$    2,511,571$         3,278,552$         $1,203,719
Dec 1,279,288$     1,279,178$        1,242,733$     1,094,736$     1,057,825$      1,180,113$     1,187,268$    1,888,413$    2,296,240$         3,077,192$         $1,558,299

Average 945,151$        1,017,265$        1,003,326$     763,592$        752,287$         822,988$        797,581$       1,148,901$    1,719,939$         2,297,372$         

$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000
$1,400,000
$1,600,000

Average Monthly Cash & Investment Balance
2009-2018

24


	01-08-19 draft
	02 01-08-19 - Exec Session draft
	03 Ag Inspector annual report and work plan
	4 Request for Board Action - Annual Contract and agreement 2019
	4a 2019 Guardianship Care and Consulting
	4b Pass Through Entity Agreement - Swift County 1-9-2018
	5 Request for Board Action - Lease agreement with City of Benson
	6 Out of Home Placement Report 12-2018
	7 1218 Fiscal Summary
	1218 Fiscal Summary
	Sheet1

	2018 Yearly Comparison
	Sheet1





